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Every Life | Every Moment | Every Impact

SINA

CARES



Eere nearly

half of the populat

lacks access Lo primary healthcare sarvices and health insurance, SINA emeanges as a beacon of hope, trans

orming The landscape of healthcarne,

accessibility & affordability

Every Life, Every Moment, Every Impact

SINA Cares

e at SiMA, the Social Innovation in Healthcare Even in theface o
Alliance, aren't just ancther healthcare provider managed to lowe

Ve e g tamiiy dedlicated To making SLne avaryane yrcrurna LS

1= the care they need, whnen they nesed it, Yvith Check-ups to lakb

0 clinics spread across Pakistan, we're read ning

OUT To over LS rmilion pecple ey Wear, ensunng Buit we don't stap at the basics We're tackling kig

issuss like diabetes, hypertensron mental health,

i
“CiouUs diseases Ead-on. Frorm making

their neighborhoods and inie

It's our commiiment o making every pEnmy sure every chilld gets their vaccinations to

care for just $3.5 per patient, and we're sticking to

count, We'va set a goal of providing top-notch screening fof diseasas like Hepatitis, we're doing

gvarylining wWwe. can b Keep oul cormimunities

healthy



And 1t's not | st akbeout

treating
Iillnesses

We're all aloul prevention too, S
ante-natal and post-rnatal care
programs are saving lves boefore
they're even In danger. We're akso
fighiting rmalnutrition and providing
support for chronic conditions, afl at

4 prica Lhat farmilies can allord

SINA

e Belleve |n iresating people with digrity. That's wihy we affer rmedicine
baskels at a lxed price, so overyone can get the treatment Bhey need
without worrying about costs It's about giving people the power Lo take

contral of thelr health and cheir Ives

., B8 wia kegp pushing forward,

m: re NOtL |US ' Wes.

We're making a difference in every moment; [nevery communit,y we touch

Boecausa at SINA

carmg |sn't_|ust what we do
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Mission

19 ©

Affordable Accessible Quality Primary Healthcare
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Clinic

Road Map

With 40 clinic lecations, Including 3 molbile clinics, strategically dispersed across underprivileged areas
of Karachl, we're providing quality healthcare ta over 1.5 millicn paople every yvear, ensuring they have

aocess toessential medical services right intheir neighborhcods
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our
Milestones

A Journey of Growth and Compassion

2024 Strengthening Our Impact

SIMA reaches 44 clinical sites, 150 certificaticn for its diagnostic lab.

Expanding Horizons

SiMNA grows 1o 39 |locations and introduces mental health services at
the community level, addressing an essential aspect of holistic health,

Reaching New Heights

With 33 operathonal locations, including mobike clinics, SIMA eaRsures
that healthcare reaches even more people.

Touching More Lives

630,000 patients treated In 2017 and 850,000 [n 2008,

Doubling Our Efforts

In an Impressive Pwo-vear pericd, SIMNA deubles ts reach by launehing
10 new elinles.

Accelerated Growth

In Just flour years, SIKA opens flve new clinles, underscorling our rapld
expansion and growing capacity to serve maore patients,

Continuing the Journey

Dponing of the lttehad Colany clinie, further expanding our feotprint.

Official Recognition

SiNA becomes afficlally reglstered with the Sindh Healthcans
Commission, selidifying our commitment to healthcare excellence.

Expanding Our Reach

The Machar Colony Clinic opens, extending our services to more
underserved communities.

1998 The Beginning

Inauvguration of the first clinic in Baldia, marking the start of our
rnission to provide accessible, high-guality healthcare.



Message From the Co-Founder

Dr. Asif Imam

Co Founder - SINA Health Education & Welfare Trust
Az we mark 25 years of the SIMA Clinics netwaork, it's 8 time for both celebration and reflection, QOur
journey began in 1998 with a vision to revolutionize primary healthcare in Pakistan. We aimed to create a
micdel that could malke a real difference, not Just Tor a few, but Tor many acress the nation,
Back then, we Identified three major challenges in the primary healthcare system: the absence of
standardized procedures, a shortage of properly trained healthcare workers, and a lack of effective
governance and data analytics. We knew that addressing these issues weould require a long-term,
houghtful plan and a lot of hard work



S0, how have we done over these 25 years? Here are some of our key achievements:

*'We have established a network of 40 high-quality

primary healthcare clinics in Karachi's urban siums

= 0uir SINA PHC model has sarmed recognition Trom
intermational crganizations like Medicines Sans
Frontiers and the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation

* The WHO has chosen SIMA as 8 moadel for primary

healthcare systems in the Eastern Meditermanean

reqian

= We are providing high-guality primary healthcare
to up te L5 million patients every year.

1.5 Million

Fatients every yeal

While these accomplishments are significant, they only begin to address the vast challenge of
achieving Universal Health Coverage (UHC) by 2030

Looking ahesad, here's what we need to doto reach our goak

« Srandardize our operations, training, and quality monitaring using a user-Friendly digital platfonm

= Develop a comprehansive training system fecused on primary healthcare to meet the large-scale needs
of UHC in Pakistan

= Advocate for policy changes at the government level to ensure proper recognition and funding for this
crucial work

= Expand outreach to more Communities & vulnerable people

This mission is not one we can achieve alone, It will require the collaboration of all organizations
dedicated to improving primary healthcare in Pakistan.

Az we celebrate this 25-yvear milestone, let's honor our achievements and
renew aur commitment to the path ahead, Together, we can continue to
make a profound impact and move closer to our vision of universal

healthcare coverage for all
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CEO’s
Message

Ambareen Kazim
Thompson

CEOQ - SINA Health Education & Welfare Trust

The right to eguitable healthcare is enshrined as a basic right of evary citizen of Pakistan. The SDG 2030,
adopted universally, lists health and wall-being, gender equality, and reduced Inequality for all. Thesa

goals are achieved when primany healthcare needs are accessible, affordable, and available to all citizens

In Pakistan, women have long been discriminated against and remain unegually representad in health
and economic empowerment. Paklistan has not invested in wormen's health as it should, resulting in
friany wornen dying from pre- and post-partum cormplications, reatable cancers, infectious diseases,
and non-communicable diseases. The heslth burden in Pakistan remains high dus to chronic

underspending in healthcare, with up to $0% of the population at risk of dizrbetes and hypertension

In this challenging contaxt, SINA not only provides

affordable, accessible quality care but also fosters .

innovation, expands service offerings, and m

promotes physical and mental well-being. Sarving SINA Serves

1.5 millien patients, SiMA helps 200000-400.000 [ ] ]
families avoid healthcare debt It remains one of 1 5 M I I I Ion
the lowest-cost providers with an advanced b

Electronic Medical Record [EMR} system ensuring patl EHtSr hE|D|ﬂ g EIlfT'ICISt
datn-rﬂ:}nt'mn and .1.|g;:-ritnm-har.t:~d pratacols for 300'000._40 O'OOO
ConSistent care quality, By the end of 2004, SINS ; .I_ _d h ]:, d
airms Lo launch an even mare advanced EMRA families avoid the burden
system, developed over 25 years of experience, C*f hea |thﬂ:::'] re dEF}t-

which promises to be a game-changer for both SINA

and partnar organuations.



SIMA aperates a state-of-The-art IS0 A0 eartf o

lazboratory capable of conducting 1 million tests

1 Million

annually. Through programs lIKe thae Expanded

Pragrarm an Immunization [EPI), over 200000

Lab Test per anum

children have received essential vaccinations. Ten

clnics offer mental health programs, malputrition
intervention, and Hepatitis screenings, alongside
health camps and awareness initiathves ,

Children vaccinated

SiINA has grown significantly as a caregiver and an institution, leveraging years of data to study disease

patterns, raise awaranass, and inform policy. Its burgeoning research department has published several

papers in PubMed-indexed journals and successfully completed its first international clinical trial

SuUpeported by visionary donors committed 1 a healthier Pakistan, 5IMA balleves in transforming
destinies by improving the health of vulnerable communities. The tireless SIMA tearms daliver

compassionate healthcare, reflecting the organization's greatest strength,

With over £0 clinics and six mobile sites, SINA's @ L
growth 15 made possible by generous donors, 40 ‘ I I n I ‘ : S

dyrmamic partnerships, and ts dedicated team 5 ;
03 mobile sites
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PCP Certified |
Organization

SiNA Health Education and Weifare Trust is proud of

ey
its certification by the Pakistan Center for (- :"’.-'f"" |
I“-'hi'.lrﬁhr'r:-p]:-,-' (PCP). This certification validates our i Mo, Eilition of W st |I
crecli bl _':,l and CrUusSTWoOrtniness, resttin g (Al
|I L] vone brver pui FiFC prahocaem

excallence we consistently uphold in maeting all
regulatary standards and requirements. Being part [

of the PCP network empowers us to strengthen

nenprofits and foundations, fostering the | 9 l
| it ] -t
developmant and enrlchment of local communities, | '-”:I'L-"lll :

d CaUse We dfa I'.‘lE'E'r.'l!:..' commitied o supparting

e L mar fw m CE

ISO 9001 2015
Certified Organization

. SGS
SINA Dagnustic Laborabory

e s 14 G
s i e )

3 1 g saam
' i —

AL IS0 90120015 cartificalion reattirms SINA i_Jl.Igl'll.l".'.lI: i
laboratory dedication to providing outstanding primary
healthcare services, This accreditation showeases our
consistent adherence to patient and regulatory
standards, ensuring supericr patient satisfaction, It
underscores our commitment to continual syskem
efhancement and improving the overall patient

ExXpErience



Healthcare Commission
Certified Organization

NI e —

SiM& Diagnostics laboratory is honored to be certified by the Sindh
Healthcare Commission. This certification is a reflection af our
steadfast commitmeant to excellance in primary healthcara
sarvices, [t validates our adherence to nigorous patient care
standards and regulatory guidelines, ansuring the highest level of

girvice. This achlevement alss underacorss our ongalng effonts to

iInRovate and enhance the |.‘:|.|.'|IIT5,- of carm wp pronace, -:‘:l:'J-!‘l!'.i'ﬁTl?r'lrI'-,-'

prioritizing patlent well-being and satisfaction

Public Healthcare (Primary)
and Digital Accessibility

& Financial Inclusion
Awards by KE-Karachi
Awards

S5IMA Health Education and
Welfare Trust is henored to hawve
recelvad two prestigious awdrds
for our significant contributions in
Public Healthcare (Primary] and
Digital Accessibility & Financial
inclusicn at the KE-Karachi
Asvards, This accoladls Servis a5 a
testament to our Unwavwernng
dedication to achieving
excellence in healthcare and

advaning accessibiliTy and

inclusion Through innovative

nitiaktives




Our |
Services
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Antenatal &
Postnatel Care

From July 2023, S5IMA has provided antenatal and postnatal care [ANC/PHNC) services to 26,888
women. These services are crucial for ensuring the

health and well-being of both mathers and their
babies during pregnancy and after childbirth. Qur comprehensive ANC/PNC programs include

regular check-ups, nutritional advice, and essential screenings to detect and address patential health
Issies early, By offaring these vital sarvices, SIMA helps to reduce maternal and Infant marfality RAtes
LUppoting ot hers Throug howt

their journey to motharhood with compassion and experfse
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Malnutrition

I addre ng che g s of Mainutrition, SINGS ha

Malnutrition sevarelhy Impacts the physical and | S FIRtIvE

ential. Our mal

desvelaprment, helping to buld a heslthler future for our cammunities




The Health Foundation
Hepatitis Screening Program

Since 2022 5IMA has partnered with The Health Foundation to implement a comprehensive hepatitis
screening program in Pakistan Thisinltiative s pivatal in detecting and preventing Hepatitis-C early,

addressing a critical public haalth concern

As of Juby 2023, SINA has conducted thousands of hepatitis screenings, significantly contributing to
public health efforts, Hepatitis, particularly types B and T, remains a formidable challenge In our reglon,
I'hrough these screenings, SINA faclitates early diagnosis and timmely Intervention, essential for effective

treatment and reducing transmission rabes

Upon a positive diagnosls, SINA provides crucial support to patients with Hepatitis-C, ensuring they re
caive essential medication and care. This holistic approach not only improves individual health outcomes

but also plays a vital role in reducing community transmission,

SIMA and The Health Foundation remain steadfast in their commitment to enhancing access to
healthcane and promotng public Ptk I:hr-:_:-l,.'gh ErOaSTive It kat ivas ko The f||_r[_'|._|.l'_|ri=_'. SEF@En Mg
program. Together, they aim to create a healthier future for all individuals across communities served by
SIMA,




Vital Pakistan Trust
-lmmunization

Wital Pakistan Trust (WVPT) has been an invaluable ally in our immid nization initiative, making a profound

impact on our mission toshield communities from preventabie diseases: Since July 2023, SINA has
achieved a remarkable milestone by administering vaccmations bo 32437 households This impressive
accomplishment highlights our steadfast commitment to advancing public health and signifies the

sucoess of our collaborative endeavors

: -:?iﬁj
L ._'t.-\. . s {

Irmmunization is a cornerstone of our healthcare sarvices, essantial for safeguarding the health of
children and adults alike. Throwgh our netwaoerk of clinles, we offer o wide range of vaceings, ernau ring
protection against illnesses such as measlas, polio, and hapatitis. By providing these essential services,
wigr alm to prevent outbreaks and foster herd immunity, thereby enhancing the ceverall weall-being of the

COMmmunity,

Quirdedication to immunization goes bevond individual haalth improvernents; it is a crucial component

of cur strategy to maintain public health and safety. The significant number of vaccinations
admtinisterad underscores our commiitment to this cause and highlfights the impact of our collaborative

efforts with Vital Pakistan. Toegether, we are working towards a healthier future, one vaccine at a time.



Diagnostics

SIMA"s mmission s to delivering essential healthcare services ta underprivileged cormmunities through

our advanced laboratory facilities. Since July 2023, our labs have conducted 190,180 diagnostic tests, jin-

cluding mpartant ultrasounds and Blood tests

These diagnostics are integral to the early detection and management of health issues, ensuring
patients recieve timely and precise care. Our laboratory, equiped with cutting-edge technalogy and

staffed by professionals, maintain top standards of accuracy and efficiency in every test conducted

25



Pharmacy

At SIMA Clinic's
charmacy, patient
safery arnd aptimal
CAre arg our top
priorities, As a crucial
componant of our
service, the pharmacy
ensurps that the right
rredicines are provid
ad with the correct
dosage, playing a vital
role in saving

natients' lives

Ta maintain the
quality and sterility of
medicines, they are
stored at prescribed

TRMParaTures To

ensure thelr efficacy,

Cur pharmnacists regularly check the sxpiry dates of the stock and kesp therm organized to ensure that
rmedicines are used in the right mannerand at the right time. They Explain dosage & time to patients

carefully

In addition to dispensing medications, our pharmmacists play a critical rofe in ensuring gquality health
care, They actively investigate adverse drug reactions, proactively identify and mitigate potential risks,

and ensure that up to 45 days' stoeck is maintainad

|l
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Mental Health
Support

Fecogrnizing the importance of mental health, SINA has provided 12,8583 mental health consultations
Troem July 2023 1o nowy, Mantal health |s integral to overall well-baing, and our sacvices Include
counseling, therapy, and support for individuals dealing with varous mental health challenges. Our
trained mental health professionals work diligently to create a supportive environment where patients
can openhy discuss Their concems and recens the help they need. SINA'S mental health program ains o

readuce stigma and ensure That mental health care i accessibbe ard efective Tor all,

e -‘:-r--'r-‘_ = ..-' &

.-----'-.___‘__--'-"
J— — .

Thess camimunities sre the most vuinerable given the social econoamic pressures, lonliness, physical and

mental abuse | lack of opportunities that they encounter on a daily basis

27



Spirit D Mental Health
Program for Sina Clinics

Center for Impact and the University of York

SiMA Health, Education and Welfare Trust, in collaboration
with the Cantor for Irmpact arnd tho ',_Inl'..r-;_"l',lr_}' af ¥York, Is
leading a transformative mental health program under
the SPIRIT-D initiative, Our project, "Strengthening
Prirmary Care for Recognizing and Treating Depression,” is
dedicated to directly addressing mental health
challengas, By intagrating the Univarsity of York's
extendad mental health program, SPIRIT-0, into Sina

Clinics, we have significamtly enhanced our ability to

: provide cormprehensive support, including both
" il |r'|'_.r'I||‘:|;| and medication, to our mental health
-\I:;‘I | Gatjents, TOgETREr, We are Warkir 19 teswarcls a =t =gl ey
‘:I' and healthier future for all

On January 10th, wa
convaned the First i
Community Advisory Panel
{CAP) meeting of the
SRIRIT-D i |."-:'J;:|.-|' t

This event brought togethar
community meambears,
patieants, and health
professicnals to share

r1'.|-:_;h1~_. Arsl diScLuss

nitiatives

It marked asignificant step forward in our mission to advocate for positive change in mental health care,

Highlights from Our Clinical Team Session

Ciur recent stakeholder meeting with clinical staff
wias a pivotal moment in our ongoing mental
health program. Key themes disgussad included
Iintarcisciplinarny callaboraticn, continuolus sta
training, and evidence-based Interventions o
enhance patient care, Further updatas on aur
progress and future initiatives aimed at
strengthening clinical practices and support

syatenns Wil l fiollow,




Insights from Our Second Stakeholder Meeting

Dapartrmental heads and key decsion-makers convened for a signiticant meaeting, engagqing in Qiscus
sions that shaped policies and strategies to address mental health challenges, The collaboratiee spirt
and commitment 1o transformative change in mantal health care were avident throughout The ax

changes

Success of the First Co-design Workshop

? In collaboration with the Center for Impact, we hosted
!i"‘" o the first Co-design Warkshop under thie SPIRIT-I Praject
@ This initiative aims to strengthen primary care for
h" recognizing and treating deprassion., Cur managernant

"_-'—'-'- q

team provided valuable insights that are enhancing our
mental health programs across Pakistan. SIMA Health Is

committed 1o ensuring accessible and quality care for all

The sacond and final session of the Co-design Workshop braught together patients, caregivers, and

community members. Their valuable contributions are helping us enhance primary care for recognizing
arc T!l'.-.'l[ing depression natiormyide; We are aong step closer ta achiavir 19 GUF goal af Sormip e FE Gy

nental health care,

29



Behavior Activation Training for Mental Health Counselors

SIMA Healthecare récently
organized a compreheaniive
3-day Behavior Activation
Training for meantal heslth
counselors and our medical
and clinical staff. Facilitated
by exparts from the Canter
Tor Impact and the University
of York, this training focused
on equipping our team with
evidence-based strategies to
address withdrawal from
averyday activities in

depression

We were honored to have Dr, Asad Tamizuddin Nizarmi, HOD Institute of Psychiatny-Rawalpindi Medical
University, Ms, Ambareen Thompson, CEQ of SINA Health, and Mubammad Furgan, Head of Programs,
present ot the event, They distributed cerificates 1o the successful participants, marking the conclu-
sion of this valuabie training experience.
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Referral System at SINA

Streamlined Referrals Process

SIMA has implemented an efficient referrals system that seamlessly conpects primary care patients to a
nelvsark of :n.p-e:ci.ﬂh.r;:.-l:l bealthcare providers, This streamilined Process snsy res that p.u'ril::n LS Experieroe

smooth transitions between different levels of care, receiving timely and personalized trestment plans

tailored to their specific health neesds.

Comprehensive Circle of Care

SIMNA's approach to patient care is holistic, integrating primary, secondary, and tertiary services to create
o comprehensive circle of care, From the initial disgnosis at primary health centers, patients are guided
through each stage of their treatment journey, This includes actess to specialized care and essential
foliow-up services at SIMA clinics, ensuring continuity of care and optimal health cutcomes for avery
patient,




State-of-the-Art
EMR System

Enhanced Patient Care Management

The EMRA systern enables a robust Review, Beferral, and Retum Mechanism that ensures seamless
patient care. This mechanism enhances the overall patient experience and satisfaction by guarantesing

continuity of care throughout their treatment journey.

Seamless Transition to Paperless Records

By implementing our

state-of-tha-art Electronic

hMedical Records (EMR) - e
eveterm across BH clinies, Sika, g

has successfully transitioned .I-::E:'." o

to a paperless record-keeping r.‘ iy . Rt 1
system, This shift enhances Shtewmiie T ekl i

Lransparancy in palie nt care

and data analysis,; significant- 5 : e

Iy improving our care . v by O deyiman i
3 : 1 WHRA SR o w] Wl iiw | el Lalsinl
managerment capabilities P S

while ensuring 2ero loss of & Carmnl m

patient records




Standardized Treatment Protocols

Dur Algorthmi-Based Treatment Protacol Systerm ensures that patients recelve consistent, high-quality
care. This systermn standardizes treatment protocals acrass all clinics and healthcare providers, ensuring

uniformity and raliability In patient care

How It Works:

* Paperless Transition:

All patient records are digitized and securely stored in the EMRA system, eliminating the risk of record

lass and enhancing data accessibility,

« Bowview Mechaniem: Pationt records ars contini ioushy reviewed for accura oy and rnmplptnn =21

ensuring up-to-date information s always available,

= Referral Process: Patients are seamlessly referred to specialized care providers within our network,
facilitated by real-time access to thelr medical records.

» Return Mechanism: After speciallzed treatment, patients are efficiently transitioned back to thelr pri-

mary care providers, maintaining continuity of care,

+ Algorithm-Based Protocols: Treatrment protocols are algorithme-driven, ensuring every patient

receives evidence-based, standardized care across all clinics and healthcare providers



100% Solar Power
Integration in Clinics

for Eco-Friendly Operations

Commitment to Sustainability

SIMA is operated all its clinics on 100% solar power, refiecting cur unwavering commitment to sustainabllity
Al fon I‘ri:"rl'“n::ll':,- |'|'.'||'.1‘i-:..=_: & This initiative has f.in:._:l'.lri:'..n 1Ty reduced our carbon faatprint, contricuting 1o a8

healthier ervironment.
Enhanced Operational Efficiency

The Integration of SGlar povwer ensures a reliable and sustalnable ERErgy source, enhancing the aperational
efficiency of cur clinics. This not only reduces our reliance on conventional energy sources but also results

in substantial eost savings, allowing us 1o allecate more resources Toward patlent care

Environmental and Econoemic Benefits

By utilizing solar energy, we reduce greenbousse gas emissions and our overall envirenmental impact,
Prodmoling & o reener futurs, Addionally, the shift 1o solar powar leads 1o -_'.|{3.-||I leant ot feduct ons 1n
snergy expenditures, enabling us to reinvest savings into improving healthcare services. Solar power
provides a reliable and sustainable energy source, ensdring that our clinics can operate efficiently without

disruptions.

" TR
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SINA’s Green
Initiatives

Driving Environmental Sustainability
& Efficiency

AT SR, we take pride in our commitment to both exceptional healthcare and environmental stewardship.
Chur climics, powered entirely by solar energy, reflect our deep dedication to sustainability and reducing our
carbon footprint. This grean initlative not only minimizes greenhouse gas emissions but also brings about

'.-'l'_-|I1-f!|'.'-=_1r'-l cost ':o-El'-."ir'-g':-_ q':'||iD"'."-.'I"'||:_:| us o channel more resources |nto Improving patient care

Equally imporiant is our shift to 3 paperiess systern through the state-of-the-art Electronic Medical Records
[EMR] system. By digitizing recards across 3B clinics, Wwe save approximately 10 million sheets of paper each
yvear, This move not only enhances the efficiancy and reliability of our patient care but also ensures that no

records are ever lost Cur efforts in Doth solar epergy Integration and digital trapstormation underscose our

cammitment toa greener future and superior healthcare

o
-
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SINA Clinics

Expanding Accessibility through Thoughtful Design

SIMA is committed to providing guality healthcare in underprivileged areas, operates a network of 40
clinics, including three new additions:




PM Diwan Clinic - Saeedabad

Oipened on Bth July 2024, PM Diwan
Clinic Speadabad serves a population of
0,000, This clinie caters to the
healthcare needs of residents in
Ghulshan e Ghazi, Sasedabad 12 No,
Mawab Colony, and Qiam Khani Colony.
This addition 1o SIMA's netwark u
rderscares our cormmitimant o oroviding

accassible healthoars 1o underprivileged

Cofmmunities.

Opened on Srd June 2024, Behbud SINA Clinic Mehmoodabad provides healthoare senvices tao 45000

people. Located in Azarm Basti, Mehmoodabad, Kala Pul, Umar Farocoq Colony, Parsi Gate Colony, and
Chanesar Goth, this clinkc reflects SINA's mission 1o expand cur reach and deliver quality healthcare to

more residents in need.
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Machar Clinic Extension

5

dedication to improving haalthcare osutcomes in marginalized areas through thoughtful planning and

community intagration




Cur clinics exernplify SINAS
commitment to excelleance in
healthcare delivery through
meticulous planning and
design. Each clinic is
meticulously crafted 1o
pricritize patient comfort and
convenience, reflecting SINA's
dedication o :prr_'u.'lr_iing -]
welcoming and supportive

emwironment for all visitors.

The architecture of SIMNA clinics blends functionality with aesthetics, featuring spacious interiars that

maximize natural light and ventilation, Modern furnishings and calming color palettes create a soothing

ambiance, fostering a sense of tranguility essential for patient well-baing

Beyond aesthetics, SINA clinics are strategically situated within community hubs, ensdring easy accessibility
for residents. This thoughtful placerment not only enhances healthcare access but also promotes cormmunity

integration and support

The expansion of SINA's clinic network
underscares its aongoing mission to improve
healthcare outcormes in m:rgm:lzznl:l areas.
This achisvement would not have bean
possible without the generous support of our
donors and partners who believe in our vision
af accessible healthcare for all. We extend
our heartfelt thanks to all denors for their
invaluable contributions that have enabled

us to expand our reach and impact




Capacity Building in
Medical Education







At SiMA Health Education & Welfare Trust, we are committed to enhancing medical education through a
rabust framework of assessments and continuous professional development. Our Initiatives are de-
signed to support healthcare professionals in their journey towards excellence, ensuring they are

well-prapared to meest the demands of modarn medicine,

CME (Continuing Medical Education)

Cur Continuing Medical Education (CME) programs at SIMA Health Education & Welfare Trust offer
healthcare professionals opportunities to stay current with rmedical advancements and best practices.

Through a wariety of courses and workshops, we ensure that professionals hawve access to the latest

krnowledge and skills, fostering ongoing learning and expertise

Tl by
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TOACS (CPSP MCPS Exam)

The TOACS (CPSP MOPS Exam) is
conducted twice a year 10 assess
candidates’ theoretical and practical
knowledgs. To aid candidates in their
preparation, SIMNA Health Education &
Walfare Trust provides mock exams
that closaly mirror the conditions and
content of the actual tests These
preparatony exams are crucial for
helping candidates gauge their
readiness and identify areas for
improvement, Achieving a pass rate of
80 to 95%, our mock exams are a vital
tool for candidatas striving to axcel in
the official CP%P MCPS exams

OSCE (MRCGP Int Exams)

The Objective Structured Clinical Examination (OSCE) for MRCGP International Exams is a key annual
assassmeant hald to evaluate clinical skills through simulated scenarios. To better prepare candidates for
the official OSCE, we offer comprehensive mock exams that replicate the format and rigor of the actual
test, These mock exams pravide invaldable practice opportunities, helping candidates to familiarize
themselves with the exam structure and refine their clinical competencies. With a high pass rate of 20 to
BG5S, our pregram is instrumental in ensuring candidates are thoroughly prepared for the real

examinatiocn.
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CT (Clinical Trainings)

SINA Health Education & Welfare Trust's Clinical Trainings (CT) for paramedical staff are designed 1o
enhance practical skills and improve patient care. Our training sessions cover the latest madical
technigques and protocols, providing paramedical staff with hands-on experience to better handle clinical

situations and contribute effectively to healthcare teams
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CPD (Continuing Professional Development)

Our Continuwing Professional Development (CPD) programs support the growth and career advancement
of healthcare professionals, These initlatives are taliored to address specific learning needs and enhance
prafeszional capabilithes, arSL FIfg tHRal auf team remains sklled and :_|r'|:_1|:|',_.._||:_||-:_' If a constant |y avoly (gfs]

healthcare landscape.

L
L~
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GP Upgrade Program
Endorsed by
MRCGP [INT] South Asia

SINA proudly presents the "GP Upgrade; & Family Medicine Training Program,” accradited by the MRCGP
[IMT] South Asia Board (SAB), Developed in collabaoration with Dr, Marie Andrades and the MQA team, this
rigorous six-month program is designed to eguip primary healthcare physicians with the skills and
knowledge necessary 10 excal in the MRCGP [INT] exam. Taught by renowned Family Medicine consul-
tants and specialists from various medical fields, the course provides a structured and comprehensive

approach ta medical traininag.

MACGP [INT] SOUTH ASLA |

T 01 ™ Wlay B0
=R T
Frogrme [boree,
L e P e g e T
ey

L] b TE R T T R
Comar . Wi, Seema.
vty o BRTGE yT] Bue dew @l 1O T RO o e
o Pl [ LS}
e Evaat H
vl sk o wraley Maeory & TN -pmdi--h—ihl-ui-_-
marmng cpzgreemre o P e g B
el e o W L T [
kT TR i T

o P Bemaerd e e By e WS T S
e Tl RN

AL L i B Srkie i Uk | ey
b P e e i i ke | g
B R S O W e B e el e e w

' i e o R ey -
1 Fom WTRCET ERAT] SAR sl coml v Braraned B g Ll

i e s ey
O el ol ey FARL § e g e O AR M e rwevharn ge rae
-

-

lﬂﬂr“ll-l“nlhﬂbt-r_--—l ELE 4
- -

e

e C .r'u'
_ I.ﬂ;ﬂ.lntu-ﬂl-n-l Vi

:-nm-m_t—n-.n Hagh Fyiwe
Hiﬂﬂl“lﬂ-“lﬂi -




The MRCGP [INT] South Asia, established by leading family doctors and educators from Bangladesh,
India, Pakistan, 5ri Lanka, and Mepal, has been supported by the Roval College of General Practitionars
(RCGR], UK, sinoe Z003-2004, Their curmiculum is crafied fo enhance the guality of General Practitioners,
ensuring they daliver cost-effective, efficient, and reliable patient care.

Cuar "GP Upgrade" program, endorsed by the MRCGP [INT] South Asia Board, is a recognized course that
aligns with the highest standards of medical education, contributing significantly to the advancement of
family medicine in the region,



Integrating Primary Health
Care into Public Health

SIMA has focused on building integrated, high-value healthcare systerms that pasition the family physician
as the frontline of primary healthcare [PHC) As the first point of contact for patients, family physicians
play @ crucial role n gulding Individuals throwgh the Broadaer haalth system, This responsiBiity includes
recognizing patients' individual risk factors and intervening with a holistic understanding of the social,
environmental, and cormnmunity determinants of health, Many developed countries ara increasingly

recagnizing the need for integrating primary care within public health frameworks, and SINA s at the

forafront of this approach,

SiMA's doctors go bevond basic diagnaostics. They understand the broader impact that physicians can
have on the health of the communities they serve. By identifying critizal secial factors affecting patient
health, they ralse awareness through data collection and infermation-sharing. SINA doctors collaborate
with public health officials to improve cutcomes and actively educate patients and communities about
the behaviors and social factors that influence health. They also practice advocacy to benefit compnunity

health, striving to reshape and improve the health landscape within the communities they serve,




With its protecol-based treatment systems, SINA integrates mental health services, immunizations,
maternal and child care, malnutrition prevention, and chronic disease management. Additionally, SINA's
robust track-and-trace program serves as a model for PHC integrated into public health, By leveraging
technolegy and data analysis to inform decision-rmakers, SINA works to improve not only the health of
individuals but alse the well-being of the communities where it operates,

Wellness,
Health Promotion,

Healthy lifestyle

Surveillance

Epidemiological
Analysis

Chronic Patient
Disease  Registries Care
Hanagmnt Coordination
Center ed Immunizations
Caredelivery| 1 ansitions S Outbreak and
of Care TRy Disaster
Care
: : Preparedness
Maternal-Child  Screenings
Genetics/ Health Community
Epigenetics Advocacy  Involvement

End of
Life/Palliative Behavioral Service
Care Health Care Planning and
Social Health Impact
Determinants studies
Identification

Case ldentification
and No tification

Public
Health

CARE CONTINUUM

Individual Population
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Events

HIgNlIgNts







Long Service Award

At SINA Health, Education, and Welfare Trust, we honor our dedicated long-serving employees with the
Long Service Award. This recognition celebrates their years of commitment to our mission and their
essential role in providing exceptional healthcare to our cormmunities, Their urwavering dedication and

hard work inspire us all to continuwe striving for excellence

Employee of the Month

Each month, we recognize one employee from the Head Office and one from the clinics who
demonstrate exceptional performance and dedication. This award highlights individuals who go abowe

and beyond, significanthy contributing to our mkssion and enhancing our crganization's overall sucoess
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Birthday Celebrations

At SINA, we cherish each team member's birthday as a special occasion, Celebrating these milestones

reflects our commitment to their happiness and weall-being, reinforcing the sense of family and joy within

our workplace

Eid Gala

SIMA'S post-Eid celebration was a day of joy, camaraderie, and friendly competition, Emploveas
participated in exciting games and team-building activities, received well-deserved awards, and enjoyed
a delightful lunch, The event showcased the unity and spirit that define SINA, emphasizing community

and appreciation
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Recruitment Drives

Cur commitment to attracting top talent was evident through our active participation in career fairs at

Igra University, Karachi University, Sir Syed Unhversity, and Sindh Higher Education Commission, These

drives allowed us to connect with aspiring professionals and showcase SIMA'S impactful work

Pakistan Independence Day

SIMNA organized a very special event to celebrate our country's Independence Day. All the employees
came together as a unit to prepare for the occasion to make it a memorable event, The naticonal anthem
wias sung by the entire team followed by patriotic songs and fun games that reflected the importance of

freedom and unity

Robin Hood Army
Food Donation Drive

SIMNG s grateful To Robin Hood Army for organizing a food drive |0 Moach Goth, a community whane we
have a primary healthcare clinic. We distributed rations 1o seventy-five deserving families, alleviating

come of their burdens




Conflict Management Training

A conflict management training session, led by Dr. Abeer Salim Habib from Tabba Heart Institute, was

conducted for head office and clinic staff. The interactive session focused on resclving workplace

disagreements and addrassing unique waork challenges

Mental Health Training

In partnership with Kazim Trust, comprebensive mental health training was provided to prioritize employ:
e well-being, fostering a supportive work environment and promoting empathy

Population Welfare
Department Training (PWD)

SIMNA collaborated with the Population Welfare Department - Sindh to offer training on birth spacing at
all clinics, Staff were trained to support patients in family planning and educate on the importance of
adequate birth spacing for maternal and child health.
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Yoga Class for Female Staff

A yoga class, led by certified restorative yoga practitionar Ms. Farhat, was arranged for female staff to

support work-life balance and wellness,

Blood Donation Drive Indus Hospital

SIMA recently held a blood donation drive at Indus Hospital to play its part In saving lves. The team
whole heartedly participated in donating blood so the needy patients at Indus Hospital can benefit from
their efforts. SIMA greatly appreciates Indus team's protocol for thorough screening of blood donors to
establish eligibility.

Pakistan Climate Conference

Dur CEQ, Ambareen Kazim Main Thompson, was a panellist at the 2nd Pakistan Clirnate Conference 2023,
sharing Invaluable insights on critical topics such as climate resilience and clean energy. Her participation

drives our commitment te a sustainable futura,




World Diabetes Day

On World Diabetes Day, SIMNA demonstrated its commitment to community health with awareness

sessions, free tests, medication distribution, and consultations, aiming to educate and prevent diabetes

Health Screening of
Summit Bank Employees

On Octolber 4, 2025, S5IMA Diagnostic Laboratory conducted the annual health screening of Summit Bank
emplovess in collaboration with Salaam Takaful This initiative underscores our commitrmeant to

pramoting employes health through proactive healthcare measures.

Health Screening Camp at Fisheries

Oin March 5, 2024, we held a heaith screening camp at fisheries in collabosation with Or. Rahirm Uddin.
This initiative focused on praviding comprehensive health screenings to local residents, promoting 2arly

detection and proactive healthcare
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Health Screening of
Bombay Sweets & Bakers Staff

Oin May &, 2025, SINA Dhagnastic Laboratory conducted the annual health screening of Bombay Sweets &

Bakers staff in collaboration with Dial for Medicine (DFM] This partnership highlights our ongoing efforts
to promate employes health through comprehensive healthcare services,

Free Medical Assistance Camp
at Aurat March - Freere Hall

On March B, 2024, 5IMNA Diagnostic Laboratory organized a free medical assistance camp at Aurat
kMarch - Freere Hall, This event demonstrated cur commitment o supparting community health

initiatves and providing accessible healthcare services

Free Medical Assistance Camp at
Soul Fest

From February 16 to 18, 2024, SINA Diagnostic Laboratory organized a free medical assistance camp at
Soul Fest Festhval, Beach View Park, Clifton, This initiative provided essential healthaare senices 1o

festival attendees, ensurnng accessibility and promoting cormmunity health,
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WONCA International Conference

Dr. Wajiha Omair represented SINA at the WOMNCA International Conference in Sri Lanka, whera she
presented a paper on the clinical audit cycles conducted by cur medical team. This highlighted SINA's

dedication to advancing medical practices and sharing knowledge an an international stage

MCPS Family Medicine Mock TOACS

Cn Decembar 8, 2003, 5iMA held a mock exam lor tha Family Medicine MCPS TOACS [Task-Orentad
Ancessment of Clinkcal SKIS]. This mock edarm, conducted By our MOS department, provided candidanes
with an invaluable opportunity to refine their clinical skills and problern-sclving abilities. Dir. Wajiha
Crnair, a member of CPSP's Faculty of Examiners for Family Medicine, played a key role in this initiative,
Ot of nine candidates, eight successfully passed the final CPSP exam.
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MRCGP [INT] Mock OSCE

Dir MOA department facilitated a mock OSCE (Ohjective Structured Clinical Examination] for MRCGP

[IMT], affering candidatas a platform to practice and prapare for thair assessmants, ansUuring readincss

and compatence,

CME: The Hidden Pandemic

We organized a Continuing Medical Education (CME] session titled "The Hidden Pandearmic” focusing on

critical aspects of ermmerging health challenges and enhancing professional knowiedge

Meeting with
Deputy Commissioner West

Deputy Commissioner West, Mr. Ahrned Ali Siggiqui, met with our team to discuss data mechanisms for
the Expanded Program on Immunization (EP1) and Polio Eradication Initiative (PEIL. He commeanded our

efforts and pledged full support far our immunization activities
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Meeting with
Chemonics International

Our CEDQ, Ms. Ambareen Kazim Thampsen, and Head of Programs, Muhammad Furgan, met with
Cr. Muhammad Tarig, Country Chrector of Chemonics International, to explore potential coliaboration

We seek support from socially responsible organizations 1o help achieve our sustainable development

Cioaks,

|.;_|:.|||';||:l; P

Visit from Dr. Zafar Mirza

We had the honor of hosting Dr. Zafar Mirza, former special assistant to the Prime Minister on health,
Car CEC, Ms. Ambareen Kazirn Thompson, provided an overview of SIMNA's heafthcare model and our
impact in Karachi and Balochistan. Dr. Zafar commended our efforts to make primary healthcare

accessible and affordable for disadvantaged patients
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SINA
Stars










Muhammad Asghar

A Journey of Dedication and Service

My journay with SINA began in December 1993 whan | joined as a Dispenser. From the vary start, | had
the privilege of woerking alongside our feunder, As5if Imam, and witnessing the foundation of what woulld

become a beacon of hope for so many.

In 2000, | was promoted to Clinic Supearvisor, a role that allowed me to take on more responsibilities and
grow with the organization. Further promotions in 2005 and 2006 reaffirmed my commitment and
dedication to SIMA's mission. One of the most challenging and rewarding experiences of my carear came
in the aftermath-of the earthguake in Balakot and Muzaffarabad, As a Field Officer, | spent ten months
on the ground, bullding 50 shalters for widows, managing a hospital, and cperating a mabile unit to
reach various locations It was a time of immense hardship, but alss incredible fulfillment, knowing we

wers making a real difference.

After our relief efforts, | was promaoted to Field Officer, and in 20712, | transitioned to the HR department.
This mowe allowed me to support and develop our growing team, using the experience and knowledge |
had gained over theyears. Today, | lead the Administration department, continuing o serve SINA with

the sarme passion and dedication that | had when | first joined

Looking back, my journey with SiMA has been filled with growth, challenges, and immense satisfaction,
From ry early days as a Dispensar to my current role, every step has bean driven by a commitrment ta
halp thoss in need, | am proud to be part of an organization that makes a real difference and grateful for
the opportunities and experiences that have shaped my career,
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Ishtiaq Khan

A Legacy of Service

In February 1998, | took my first step into the SIMNA family as a Dispenszer, full of hope and detarmination,
My fourney began with supervising startup clinics, where | eagerty contributed to thelr construction and

opening. This early experience taught me the value of teamwork and perseverance

| wara rrany hats, handling administrative duties, data entry, and procurement tasks, These roles allowed
me to undarstand the inner workings of SIMNA and build refaticnships with my colleagues. Each task, no

rmatter how small, felt like a piece of a larger puzzle | was helping to complete

The earthguake of 2005 was a turning point. Amidst the devastation, | saw the power of community and
the impact of our work. Collaborating with SINA's doctors in the rellef program, | witnessed flirsthand the
difference wa could make, Introducing the first portable X-Ray machine during this period was a proud

moment, knowing it brought much-needed aid to those in need

Az theyears passed, my role evalved. Today, as the Senior Finance Officer, | handle insurance cases,
rmanage cash flow, and overses both zakat and non-zakat funds. Each responsibility comes with its own
set of challenges, but also immense satisfaction, Managing SINA'S fuel cards and overseeing payables

requires a keen eye for detail, a skill I've honed over time
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Salma Razik

A Source of Inspiration for Women

In 2007, eager to gain hands-on experience in the medical field, | started as an intern at SINA's Baldia
Clinic. the only clinic at the time. | learned Clinical medical procedures such as taking vital signs,
administering injections, and collecting sarmples, as well as acqguiring knowledge about various
medicines, During my one-year volunteer stint, | immersed mysell in all aspects of clinical operations,
from handling cash to honing administrative skills. This iInvaluable experlence laid a strong foundation

for my future in healthcana

I 2008, | was promoted to Clinic Supervisor at Baldia Clinie, [ took on this role with dedication and
commitrment, serving until 2007, During this period, | started my married life and welcomaed two
children. SINA supported me throughout, providing 2 nurturing environment whare | could balance my
personal and professional responsibilities. | furthered my education by completing a four-month clinic
technician course through SiMA, a short' course in English language through PACC, and various

computer courses offered by private institutions.

by journay with SEA was one of continuous growth and learning. By 20017, after successfully serving as
an auditor, manager, and supervisor at seven clinics, | was promoted to Assistant Manager of Clinic
Operations. At that time, SINA had expanded to twenty-five clinics. During my tenure as Assistant
Manager, 5INA opened threse more clinics, | also earned my HRM diploma, further enbancing my skills

and knowledge,

Im 2022, by the grace of Allah, | was promoted to Manager of Clinie Operations, a position | hald to this
day, This role allows me to contribute significantly to SINA'S mission of providing quality healthcare 1o

underserved communities, managing 40 Clinical Sites,

SIMA has been a remarkable source of knowladge and growth for me. The organization recognized my
patential and provided me with cpportunities to excal, The supportive amaronment at SIMA, whers
everything is designed to encourage women, has been instrumental in my journey. | have always felt
protected and valued, with management ensuring that | faced no obstacles in my professional
development

Waorking at SIMA has not only been about professional growth but atso about resilience and dedication,
As awoman, | tock on the responsibilities often shouldered by men, striving to support my family and
rurn my household effectively. Teday, as | look back on my journey, | am filled with gratitude for the
experiences and opportunities that SIlNA has given me, The wealth of informiation and support | received
here have made me who | am today, SIMA saw my potential, nurtured it, and helped me grow into a

confident and capable leader. For that, | am forever thankful.
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Our
Partners




Aftab Trading Company

Pakistan Hosiery Manufacturers & Exporters Association
Providus Capital [Pvt.) Ltd,

Reliance Insurance Co,

Automaobile Corporation of Pakistan (AUTOCOM)
Sherman Securities

Mianoor Engineering

Bharucha & Ceo,

Adamjes Enterprises

Arham Enterprises

Achral All Enterprises

Horme Solutions

Crial Zero Pt Lid

Fav Plastico [Pvi] Ltd

Harmsons Industries

Sapphire Textile Mills Limited [(SAPT)
Distribution Services

NFK Exports {Pvt) Ltd

PEXIMP Trading Comparny
Pharmevo Private Limited

Shujabad Agro Industries

Salaam Takaful Limited

Amna industnes

Cigital Apparel (Pwt) Ltd

. D, Shipbreakers

Pelican International Trade - impert
Midas Safety

Premium Textile

Shafi Apparels

kKarachi Grains (Pvi) Ltd.

Papsico

Spirit-C {The Center of IMPACT, LIOY)
British Asian Trust - BAT

Fareign, Commaoanweaalth and Develapment Offiee - FCDO
Wiorld Health Organization - WHO
Sehat Kahani

Fakistan Cables Limited

Population Services International (PS)
Savera Enterprises

Synapse, Pakizstan Meuroscience Institute
Pakistan Aluminium beverage
Liberty power tech

Anum Fabrics

k.5 Rellance Insurance

Shujabad Agro Industries

DD shipbreakers

Halix pharma pwt Ltd

Sapphire group

K-Electric

AGE Limited

Barrett Hodgson Pakistan |Private] Ltd
etz Pharma [Private] Limited
Efrcze Chemicals Industries Pvt Ltd
Macter International Pyt Ltd

Multi Traders [Distributor)

Malbi Qasim Industries Pyt Ltd
Platinum Pharmaceutical Company
Zafa Pharmaceutical Company Ltd
ZR Impex (Distributor)

Bismillah Internaticnal Traders

Mex Tek Health Care
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Dial for Medicine (DFM)

The collaboration between SINA Diagnostic
Laboratory and Dial for Medicine {DFM), initiated
on September 5, 2023, ensuras comprehensive
armployea health screening. This positive
initiative benefits both organizations and their

employeas by enhancing access to guality

diagnostic services,

Inspire Pakistan

SIHA has formalized a Memommndum of
Undarstanding {MOU] with Inspire Pakistan to

facilitate the provision of quality healthcare
sarvices to both host and refugee communities
at Machar Gujre Gadap. This collaboration is
designed to foster harmany between the two
groups and encourage them to utilize the SIMNA
chinic within their vicinity, thereby promoting

hiealthier Individuals,

SiMA extends Its gratitude to Inspire Pakistan for donating essential medical equipment, which will
support our angoing healthcare efforts at Machar Gujre Gadap. We also appeal to other healthcare

arganizations to join us in transforming the healthcare landscape of vulnerable communities
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Integrated Research
Solutions Global - Private Limited

SiMNA has signed a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOLU) with Integrated
Research Solutions Global - Private
Limited to collaborate on research and
publications. This partnership weill
enable both organizations to produce
maaningful research in the healtheare
field, quantifying critical medical issues
and Fi:l*{l"."i'::fl-r‘lg o roadrmap far

intraducing relevant policies.

State Life Insurance
Corporation of Pakistan

On August T, 2023, SIMNA entered into a significant partnership with State Life insurance Corporation of
Pakistan airmed at delivering comprehensive emplayes health sereening programs. This callabaration
prioritizes the well-being of employees across various organizations, ensuring proactive healthcare

megasures.
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Salaam Takaful Insurance

on August 22, 2023, S5INA forged another impactful partnership with Salaam Takatul Insurance to
revalutionize healthcare services This collaboration focuses an delivering comprahansive employes

hiealth screening programs, emphasizing tha holistic well-baing of amployess in diverss arganizational

settings

Corporate Health Services (CHS)

Lin February 23, 20024, SINA entered Into an MO with Corporate Health Carvices [CHS), a8 prosader af
health care services. This partnership s set to reshage the landscape of healthcare services in the region,

enhancing access and affordability for community meambers,

Commander City
M9 Motorway Highway

On March 1, 2024, 5IMA established a
collection point at Sick Bay Hospital in
colaboration with Commander City M9
Motorway Highway, This initiative aims to
facilitate residents with affordable and quality

healthcare services within thelr comirmunity
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Sehat Kahani

On March 27, 2024, 5IMA Diagnostic Laboratory partnered with Sehat Kahani, a telernedicine services

prevdicler, 1o cul down the diagnostic costs for thaeir patients This collaboaration aims o anhanos access o

affardable diagnostic services, ensuring guality healthcare delivery across the reglan

Santex Products (Pvt) Limited

We are proud to announce cur partnership with Santex Products Karachi to enhance women's well-bea-
ing in slums, The SANTEX Team provided free menstrual hygiene product samples and conducted
awaraness sessions at owr clinics. This initiative aims to empower and uplift wonmen on their health jowe-

neys, braaking barrlars and fostering confidence in underserved communities

78



Global Recognition
& Collaboration







Deutsche Gesellschaft fur
Internationale Zusammenarbeit

(GI1Z) GmbH

On Movernier 16, 2023, SIMNA Health, Education, and Welfare Trust had the privilege of hosting a
delegation fram Deutsche Gesellschaft filr Internationale Zusammenarbeit (CIE) GmibH at the Mew
Machar Clinke UC-8, The defegation, including #Mr. Jorgen Wintermeler (Consultant), Ms. Mora Valenzuela
[Advisor). Mr. Hashim Khan (Senior Technical Advisor), and Ms. Sarah Ahrmed (Advisor), expressed
appreciation for SINA's commitment to primary healthcare. They conveyed interest in future

collaborations to enhance healthcare services for vualnerable communities.

World Health Organization (WHO)

A crucial meeting took place with Dr. Palitha Mahipala, Head of Mission in Pakistan for the World Health

CDrrganization (WHOL inslarmabad, The discussion centered on potential partnerships aimed at
advancing primary healthcare delivery to underseryed populations, reinforcing the collaborative efforts

to address regional healthcare challenges.
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University of Manitoba and Bill &
Melinda Gates Foundation

SIMA was honored to host a distinguishad delegation frem the University of Manitoba and the Bill &
btelinda Gates Foundation. The delegation included Dr. Faran Emmanuel (Professor and Director), Jameas
Blanchard [Associate Professor) from the University of Manitoba, Dr. Tahira Ezra Reza (Director, Centre far
Clabal Publie Health Pakistan), and Ms Aisha Salman from the Bill & Melinda Gateas Foundation
Discovery Canter. During their visit, discussions led by CED Ms. Ambarean Thompson and

kAr Muhammad Furgan, Head of tha Public Health Cepartment, focusad on enhancing primary and
reproductive healthcare for marginalized communities, ernphasizing shared goals and a collaborative

approach to tackling healthcare challenges
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Soorty Foundation

Vital Pakistan Trust - VPT
ChildLife Foundation
Yaqin Steels Ltd.

Artistic Milliners

Engro Foundation
Liberty Mills Limited
Master Group

Mustagim Dyeing & Printing Industries (Pvt.) Ltd
Lucky Textile Mills Ltd.
Gatron Foundation
Paragon Constructors
Sattar Electronics

IIL Centre Majeed colony

Idrees Steel Co.

Rakla Tyres Inc.

Behbud Association Karachi
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Health research is of paramount importance and plays a pivotal rofe in the improvement of
existing health systems, framing evidence-based health care policy, and generating new inltiatives
and advancing knowledge about problems relating to public health and their solutions

- WHG 2012,

Hecearch in healthcarns 15 essential Qhvan The moyrlad probderms t b Country Tages, The most netable baing
inadeguate spending in health care as a whole. Palkdstan has faced economic crises for the |ast several
decades and has not been able to tackle its population growth challenges effectively. On the other hand,
it has averny yvoung populaticn which can ke a hege asset onby IF it is healthy and economically preductne.
T this end, substantial investment in research is needed to improve exsting systams and to design

evidence-based policies so they are maost effective glven limited resources

A5 a primary health care provider In urban slums, SINA has a state-of-the-art EME which not anly
registers patlents but provides a wealth of data showlng demographics, disease trends, co-morbidity
patterns, vatlances bebween athnic greups, and much maore, When | Jomned SIMNAGD Iate 2021 1| eallzed
that almaost a mitlion patient records were at the sk of being lost as thay were maintalned in pre-EMR
paper records which unfortunately were not stored in the best of conditions, The MIS tean was taskad to

not anly induct the records into the system but to save as much data as possible

& armall tearn was created In-houseand was led enthusiastically by

Hina Sharif

Pharm-D (Karachi University),
MBA, MSPH (AKL)

wnder the guidance of cur trustes and recipient of Tarmmgah E Imtiaz Dr. Nuzhat

Farcgui Supparted By tha Brillant taarm at SIUT, 10 membars af tha SIRLA taarm
including Dr. Faruqul, the SINS team first attended a 3-day structured training at SILT learning about
ethilcs irwabeed in research, forming ERE boards, challanges, and much rmaora

SI NA'E E R B SiMA's EREB board was formed in July 2022 and received internaticnal

Was Fﬂrmed fl"'l 3 U]y aocreditation in LS Department of Health & Hurman Services |HES)

registration # 1O0RGOONG24. Over the course of the past 18 months,
the research team want 1o work with a passion and has been
published in PubMed indexed international journals SIMNA atso

completed its lirst pharmacalogy trial of evaluating the efficacy and
received international safety of empagliflezinn in-addition o insulin and ol antidiabetic
accreditation in LS. rredication {2AD) reglmen In poorly controlled type 2 diabetes and
Department of Health abese patients.
& Human Services
(HHS)




This study was published inthe Pakistan Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences on February 1, 2024, with
the ClinkcalTra 84 Ta L] lel@antifies MOCTOEESSIE0 anad PMID: ZR7TETIOE arnd 1S available inter |1_'.[|;'-!'-._:I:.,- Aot

ar ClinicalTnals.goy identifier NCTOGISO10E,

Research On
Metabolic Parameters

Metabolic Syndrome and Obesity Among Marginalized
School-Going Adolescents in Karachi, Pakistan:
A Cross-Sectional Study

Published in  The Lancet Regional Health - Southeast Asia

Metabolic Syndrome (Meth), charactenzed by central obesity, low HDL-chelesterol, hypertriglyceridemisa,
hypertension, and hyparglycemia, regulres early detection to prevant type 2 diabetes and cardiovascular

diss=ase. This study highlights the need for affordable screening and dietary interventians in Pakistan,

Read the full study:
https: ffiwww sciencedirect.com/sciance/article
foiif S22 2368224000040
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Mental Health Well-being
Among Childrens &
Adolescents In Slums

Anxiety Levels Among School-Going Adolescents in Peri-Urban
Areas of Karachi, Pakistan Published in PLOS ONE

CoMIMmoan armionit

Read the full study:

Self-Esteem Levels in School-Going Adolescents Across the
Slums of Karachi, Pakistan: A Cross-Sectional Analysis
Published in Frontiers

Read the full study:

Self-esteem levels in school-going
adolescents across the slums

of Karachi, Pakistan: a
cross-sectional analysis




Oral Health
Status Among people

At Slums

Evaluation of Oral Health Among People with Multimorbidity
in the Marginalized Population of Karachi, Pakistan:

A Multicenter Cross-Sectional Study Published in Journal

of Taibah University Medical Sciences

Mhere s a clear lInk batween aral i
health problems.and a higher
Fesk ol multirmorbid ity inciuding

diabretes. hwpariension, and

Tuibuh LUsmgrsily
\’l Jouemal of Talbah University Modical Sciences

anamia, Periodontal disease’is
comirman among those with Crigimall Arijcie

multiple chronic conditions, Evalnation of aral health among people with multimarhidity in the
affecting quality of |ife and margimlized popalation of Karachi, Pakistam A multicenter
cross-sevlional study

I|:._i-'|||'||:_'_. to ligh healthcans cosls
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Population Health

Unveiling Barriers to the Modern Contraceptive Uptake in the
Urban Slums of Karachi: Perceptions, Attitude, and
Accessibility Published in Cureus

Crespite high national need, modern contraceptive
use in Pakistan remains low due to social stigma,
".i-;_ll.' |_.=f14_'-: L e o T ] o 8 “.;1|-'i|',- S;g'_l' ||||;_-1‘1_-|{_:|*:{_'|_:-'_'H
religious beliefs, and spousal refusal. lImproving
access and addressing misconceptions are

ciucial,

Read the full study:
https:iwww.pjps. pkiuploads 2024
JOTTOE1 6423 pdf




Poor Glycemic Control

Evaluating the Efficacy and Safety of Empagliflozin Addition to
Insulin and Oral Antidiabetic Medication (OAD) Regimen in
Poorly Controlled Type 2 Diabetes and Obese Patients Published
in Pakistan Journal of Pharmaceutical Sciences

Diabates presenls a significant haalth
challenge globally, with Pakistan
ot Ty el

ranking high in prevalence o it e T
“cording to the Intemational

Diabetes Fedaration (IDF) Atlas,

Insulin resistance complicatas

diabetes care, necessitating diverse

approaches for glycemic control,

wee gt management, and lipsd prolile

madifications

Read the full study:
. pj s plduploads 2024 /011706164221, pdf

Depression & Diabetes

Depression and Suicidal ldeation among Individuals with
Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus: A Cross-Sectional Study from an
Urban Slum Area of Karachi, Pakistan

Depression and suicidal ideation are common among
individuals with type 2 diabetes, especially In disadvantaged
socioeconomic groups and those with prolongead jliness. This
study highliahbts the correlation between these mantal health
issues and diabetes in urban slums,

Read the full study:
hitps:fwww frontiersinergfjournals/public-health/articles
AN03389/ fpubh. 20231135964/ Full




Predicting Diabetes Distress using Problem Areas in Diabetes
Scale and Diabetes Distress Scale-17: A Cross-sectional Study

in Slums of Karachi Published in IAPS Journal of Practice
in Mental Health

This-study explores the prevalence of diabetes distress in Karachi's urban shims using the PAID scale
and DOS-17 to assess emotional distress refated to diabetes management.

Read the full study:
https/journalehwvw.com/pmh/fulltext/2023/M020/
predicting_diabetes_distress_using_problem_areasZ.aspx
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Physical & Mental Health
Well Being

Is a Sedentary Lifestyle a Leading Causal Factor of Obesity
and Distress in Type 2 Diabetes? A Cross-Sectional Study in
Low Socioeconomic Areas of Karachi, Pakistan

Published in BMJ Journal

The rizing global prevalence of disbetes sepecialhy with abaaity, o concerning, with cedoantary bahoaviar
worsening the cnsis, particularly in low socioeconomic areas. This study exarmines the fink between
socioechnomic faclors and sedentary Debavior among digbeties ih Karachi's siu ms

Read the full study:
hitps/fbmjpublichealth.bmjcomicontent/1/1/e000140
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Respiratory
Disease Burden

Respiratory Diseases' Burden in Children and Adolescents
of Marginalized Population: A Retrospective Study in Slum

Area of Karachi, Pakistan

Published in Frontiers

3lation inthe prevatence of respiratony diseases, posing a

Clobally, there has been a significant es:
substantial threat to the well-being of the general population, particularly in marginalized communities

Read the full study:

COVID-19 Vaccine Uptake Among Opulent vs Slums of Urban
Setting in Karachi, Pakistan: A Cross-Sectional Study

Published in Indonesian Journal of Community Health Working

%, posing a
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Dr. Asif Ali Imam

D, Asif All Imarm, a graduate of DOW Medical College, completed his
residency and specialization in immunoiogy in the USA. Settling in Los
Angeles with his family in 1998, Dr, Imam laid the foundation for SINA,

His visionary leadership and medical expertise have been instrumental
in guiding SIMNA' healthoare iRt bt bees

Mr. Sohail Ahmed

pir. Sohnail Ahmed, an industrialist by profession, holds an MBA from
the University of Houston, USA, and serves as a Director at MM Textiles
Private Limited, He has been associated with SIMA since its inception,
bringing extensive experience in management and finance, wtal for

sustaining and expanding SIMA's impactful programs

Dr. Naseeruddin Mahmood

Cir. Mahrnood, associated with the Aga Khan University Hospitalas a
Consultant Pediatrician and Meonatolagist, is actively Involved in
public health initiatives across Pakistan, & Trustee of the Childlife
Foundation and the Karachi Rehel Trust, Dr. Mahmood's medical

acumien significantly enhances S5IMNA's strategic healthcare
intervantions.




Mr. Abdul Khaliq Thakur

Mr. Abdul Khalig Thakur, with a background in Manne Engineering
and years of service in the Merchant Mawvy, retired as Chief Enginser
Mariner in 2006, Dedicated to hurnanitarian causes, Mr. Thakur now
valunteers Bis timae and axpartise (o support SINAS rmilssion,
contributing invaluable operational insights and maritime discipline

L3 organizal il naT T,

Mr. Fazil Bharucha

Mr. Bharucha, a partner at Bharucha & Co., holds degreesin
Electrical Engineering and Law, He practices Intellectual Property
Law and is an enrolled advocate of the Sindh High Court. Asa
Trustee of Altermaad Pakistan Trust, Mr. Bharucha's legal expertise
and commitment to ethical governance enrich SIMNA's legal and

requlatony framesworks




ADVISORS TO THE BOARD

Mr. Rafiqg Rangoonwala

bt E&rlgﬂl}ﬁ'ﬂ.-.‘i.l.-_l.l alter :’_:.:arr'uir"nl:‘; mis Ba [Hans | from thae LRl
warsity of Karachi, pursued further education in the U5A. Ha
attended Wittermore School of Business, University of Mew
Hampshire, to complete his Executive Development coursea
and later aarned his MBA in Marketing. Mr. Rangoonwala
brings strategic business acumen to SINAS board, leveraging
his International experience to drive organizational growth

and sustainability.

Mr. Irfan Z. Bawany

br. Irfan Z. Bawany, Chief Executive Officer at Anam Fabrics
[Pt} Ligl, also sernves on the boards af Farhan ':'i.i,lg.'lr S
Ltcd, and Reliance Insurance Co, Ltd, as & non-execyutive
director. A member of the Texas Sociaty of Certified Public
Accountants, Mr. Bawany received his undergraduate
degres from the University of Houston. His financial
stwardship strengthens SINAS Tscalsirategues and

Corporalo goWarmanca

Dr. Nuzhat Faruqui

Dr. Muzhat Farugui is a recipient of the Tamgha e Imtiaz and is
one of Pakistan's most emninent Wrologists, Serving as an
Accictant Prafessor at the Aga Khan Hespital, Murhat helds an
FCPS im Urclogy, (CPSP 2005) and was awarded an Internationa
Fellowship in Famale Uraloegy, Uredynamics and Pelvic Floar in
Recansiruction, 200820059, She attainaed har MBBES {rom Baga
Medical Coliege in 1995 and then completed her Residency in
Lralagy fram AKLW in 2005 She also holds an Honarary Rank af
Surgean Commander from The Pakistan Mavy and leads a
number of research projects. She is also actively involwed with a
Mt for Pratit “UItat”™ that runs multiple initiatndes 00 sare

vulnerable communities in need




MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ambareen Kazim Thomson | Chief
Executive Officer

Ambareen Kazim Main Thompson, a Pakistani national, is the Chief Executive
Officer of SIMNA Health Education & Welfare Trust. She has extensive experience
in family reproductive hiealth and has previously managed one of Pakistan's
largest nonprofit programs, overseeing 850 community-based clinicsand a
team of over 1,000 feld staff,

As CEQ, Ambareen leads primary healthcare services for over ona million
patients annually in undersernved communities. She has successfully raised 400
rruillion rupeaes in funding and developed sustainable revenue strearms, Her
initiatives include launching mental health programs and advocacy campaigns
for hepatitis, sexual haalth, tuberculosis, and diabetes.

Ambareen holds a Master's degree in Clobal Security & South Asia from King's
Codlege London and an MBA in Marketing & Administration from the University
of Karachl. She i= a certifled directar frem the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Covernance [PICG) and has completed various programs frem Harvard and

Columibia Universities. Her awards include the King's Clobkal Experience Award

Kamran Samad | Head of Finance

kKamran Samad is an accomplished accounting professional with 20 years of
experience in accountancy and audit. Since joining SINA Health Education &
Welfare Trust in July 2019, he has utilized his expertise to lead financial
operations, ensuring compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and local regulations.

His competancies include hudga[ing and forecasting, Nnancial repoarting and
anmalysis, and managing internal and external audits, Proficient in systam
implementation and various ERP systems such as 5AP BPC, MS Dynamics
Mavision, and Oracle, Kamrman excels in financial oversight, project expanditure
management, and donor reporting, while maintaining strong relationships

with banking partners and ensuring accuracy in financial decumentation




Dr. Wajiha Omair Choudhry | Head of
Medical Affairs

Cr. Wajlha Omair Is a mothated family physician with over five years of pro-
grassive experience. She currently serves as the Manager Madical Affairs at
SIMA Health Education & Welfare Trust, where she leads initiatives to promote

farmily medicine training and evidence-based practice,

Her competencies include dingnostic skills, treatment planning and execution,
strong interpersonal and relationship-building abilities, clinical decision-mak-
ing, and patient counseling. Or, Omair has successfully revised the EMR
systerm, conducted regular perfarmance audits, monitored disease data, and
organized raining programs. She collaborates with various organizations to
provide comprohensive care and encourages clinical skill training through in-

ternship programs,

Dr. Faisal Tahseen llyas | Chief Operating
Officer (Diagnostic Lab)

Oir. Faizal Tahsesn is the Chief Operating Officer at SINA Diagnostic Laboratorny,
Holding an MBA in Health Management and Sciences Trom Bagal Institute and
an MEBEBS from Hamdard College of Medicine and Dentistry, he has extensive

axpanence in healthcare administration and clinical servicas. Dr. Tahsaan prévi-
ously managed one of Karachi's langest nonprafit healtheare programs, serving

nearly a million patients annually in underserved communities,

His expartise spans social development, project and business development,
policy tormiulation, and stakehalder engagamant. At SIMA, he oversees dally
operations, strategic growth, and ensures compliance with various certifica-
tiens, Or. Tahseen has o proven track record in improving healtheare outcomes
and managing large-scale clinical operations, supported by certifications in
BLS, ACLS, ATLS, and Good Clinical Practice.

Salma Yousuf | Head of Clinic Operations

Lalma Razig iz a distinguished professional with over 20 years of experience
spanning managemant, clinical operations, and education, She earnad her
Master's degree in International Relations from Karachi University and has

butlt a robust carear through diverse rolas,

Her experience includes five vears of teaching at a private school, three years
as a Clinical Techniciam at SIMA, and 14 vears In various management
capacities at SIMA Health, Education, and Welfare Trust Salma has also heid
positions as an Auditor and Assistant Manager Clinical Operations, Since
Junme 2022, she has been serving a5 a Manager at SIMA, where she continues

to drive crganizational success and demaonstrate her expartise in her field




Anam Saleem | Head of Human Resource

Anum brings over 9 years of expertise in HR Strategy Planning &
Implementation, Talent Acguisition, and Development, with a focus on

leveraging technology for HR process optimization.

Praviously, Anum senvsed as Manager of Human Hesources & Talenst
Developrment at BlusEX from 2017 to 2024, There, she revitalized human capital
strategies, enhanced employes engagement, and fostered a culture of
continuous learning and developrnent, Her experience also includes working
with a listed company on tha PSX and serding as the Board HR Committes
Sarcratany.

Khawaja Yasir Igbal | Head of Projects
& Construction

Khawaja Yasir lgbal is a result-driven Project Manager with Tl years of
exparience managing projects valued over PKR 140 billion, He has a proven
track record of delivering high-value, complex projects on time, within budget,
and exceeding gquality standards by implementing efficient project manage-

ment practices,

His efforts have resulted in a 95% increase in positive project outcomes and
stakeholder satisfaction. Yasir has managed five mega-scale governmeant
projects and 18 hospital construction peojects funded by the Bill and Melinda
Gates Foundation, Currently, he serves as the Head of the Project Management
Department at SINA Health, Education & Weltare Trust, wherne he has led a
team of 32 professionals to successfully complete 18 projects with 100 %
succass rate, He holds a PMP certification and a Master's in Project
Management, having been awarded a prestigious educational honor that

underscores his strong foundation in project leadership and execution

Sadaf Khurshid | Head of Marketing

Sadaf Khurshid is a skilled marketing leader with over a decade of experience

in managing innovative campaigns and enhancing brand presence. As
Manager Marketing at SIMA Health Education and Welfare Trust, she leads

strategic initiatives, manages rebranding efforts, and secures sponsorships.

Previously, she excelled as Marketing Manager at MARS Healthcare Metwark
and Digital Marketing Lead at LAMTANS Graup of Companies, boosting social
madia engagernent and launching key digital platforms, Sadaf is known for
her expertise in brand communication, digital strategy, and content
development. She holds a BBA from KASBIT University and a Diploma in

Drigital Marketing from the Institute of Business Administration 102




Sunail Saleem | Head of Supply Chain

Sunail Saleem is a seasonad Supply Chain professional with owver a decade of
experience in procurament, specializing in the sourcing of medical and
surglcal supplies, laboratary equipment, blomedical devices, printing and

stationerny materials, and consumablas,

He has developed his expertise at esteemed institutions such as Aga Khan
University Hospital and Marie Stopes Society, Prior to joining Sina, Sunail led
the procurement department at Hashmanis Group of Hospitals, where ha
made significant contributions to the organization’s procurament strategias,
He holds a Master of Scienca degree in 2upply Chain Managerment, which
enhances his capability to navigate the complesities of the procurement
process wIth precisien and emficiency

Muhammad Furqgan | Head of
Public Health

Muhammad Furgan is an expetienced Operations and Project Management
professional with 10 years of expertise in Manufacturing, Vocational, and Health
sectors Currently serving as Program Manager at SINA Health, Education &
Welfare Trust, he manages public health programs, develops proposals, and

oversees donor relations,

His background includes project planning, budget management, and team
capacity building, supported by an MBA in Supply Chain and a Bachelor's in
Electronics, His pravious roles at The Hunar Foundation, GIZ, The Arman
Foundation, and REW Pakistan demonstrate his abilicy to deliver high-impact

projects and build strong donor partnerships.

Muhammad Asghar | Head of
Administration

tMMuhammad Asghar Is a highly experienced professional with a diverse
background in education, healthcars, data analysis, and administration. Ha
began his career with three years of teaching at a private school, followed by

15 years as a part-tirme Data Analyst at Park View Clinic,

AL SIMA Health, Education, and Welfare Trust, Muhammad has held several
key roles over the years, including Bispenser, Clinic Supervisor, Program
CoordinatanField Officer, and rofes within the Human Resourcaes
Departmant, armassing 12 vears of experience in HR. Currently, he serves as
the Dreputy Manager Administration at SINA, a position he has held sincea
Januarny 2024, Muhammad's extensive expertise and dedication make him a

vital asset to the organization.




Rashid Hussain | Head of IT

Mr. Rashid Hussain [ Senlor IT Manager with over a decade of expertise, including
substantial international exposure, He specializes in aligning IT strategies with busi-

ness goals, ensuring the efficiency and security of IT infrastructure,

Rashic excels in designing, implemanting, and maintaining complex systerns, and has
successiully led Righ-perforrring teams His proficiency spans various programiming
languages and technologies, driving the development of web-based ERP systems to
streamline multi-departrmental operations. With skills in software developrnent,
databagte managemaeant, network security, and IT infrastructune, Rashid = committed

ta leveraging technology for business success and cperational efficiency.

Hina Sharif | Assistant Manager Research
& Publications

Hina Sharif is an accomplished pharmacist with a Bachelor's degree in Pharmacy
from Karachl University and a Master's in Management Sclences from Igra University.
Currently, she is completing her second Master's in Public Health from Aga Khan
University. Hina began her career as a Quality Control Officer at ATCO Labaoratories
and later transitioned to a hospital setting as a pharmacist, She advanced to the role
of Lead Licensed Pharmacist, where she has excelled in managing pharmacy opera-

tions, particularly in NGO hospitals,

Ak o Lead Investigatar, Hina has cantributed significantly ta research, authoring 15
scholarly articles in respected international journats Her dedication to pharmacy

and pubiic health makes har a respacted professional in har Fiald,

Awais Alam | Assistant manager MIS &
Data Analytics

Aals Alam is a professional with over 11 yvears of experience in Management

Informaticn Systems (MIS] and data analytics, along with a background in software
development, Starting his carger as a MET application developer, be s proficient in
C. C++ Python, and B, and skilled in database management systems such as Oraoke

ared MySOL,

Currently acting as the lead for the MIS and Data Analytics department, Awais
integrates data systems and conducts analyses to support key business decisicns,
He implemeants systems to improve workflows, develops intermal databases, and
spearheads data-driven initiatives, focusing on enhancing healthcare outcomes and

operational ff iclency
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SINA HEALTH. EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST

INTRODUICT [EN:

With the vigsion of providing quality primary healthcare accessible te those who need it the maost, SINA
i a not-for-profit ocganization dedicated powards providing affordable access to quality primary
healtheare in urban siums of Karachi since 1998, We are 450+ people working together foomesed on one
cause - to provide guality primary healthcare to the less privileged,

Thiough sur 30 Clinic bocitions operating 08 kowrs o cay, 06 days o week, round the year, we provide
guality primary healtheare in the heart of urban slums of all districts of Karachi. This includes a mobile
clinic catering to 3 locations to provide healthcare in the ouiskirts of Karachi and 2 referral clinics which
guarantee a bridge between community dinics and hospitals,

METHOD OF UTILIZATION OF ZAKAT;

The Amancial needs of SINA are being covered by Generil Donatlons & Eakat that individuals &
corporate contribube, After verification of Zakat eligibility, the specifically assigned official of SINA
réLbesEn }I-e'|'l|:|ih'.~i||::-|'| tov el stk Fakeat o hahal [ of Zakat q:|Lp_|||1]L- patlents amel 16 :-.-|:l|.'IH:| it directly on thelr
medical and healthcare expenses as per the conditions of Zakat form. Avcording to these limits 5INA
uses Eakat funds very carefully,

SHARIAM BULING:

We confirm that STNA Health, Education & Welfare has appainted Alhamd Shariah Advisory Services
[Pvr] Limited as Shariah Advisor to guide the management in collection and utilization of Zakat and wo
ensure that the whole process is Shada-compliant, both in letter and In spirit.

Based on owur review, we hereby confirm that SINA collectes and spends fakat fund in
accordance with the instructions of Shariah. [tis also confirmed that whosoever will give Zakat to SINA
Health, Education & Welfare; their Zakat will be paid as per Shariah point of view, May Allah grant the
management of SINA Hegleh, Education & Welfare bhegt peward for their serwvices, and may give in thair
mission more hiessings and sincerity, Aameen

For and on flﬁflﬂﬂfﬂf'ﬁ”ln‘rﬂﬂﬂ' Sharviah Advisory Services [P, ) Ltd

S

Mufti Uzair Bilwani s ok 5o Mufti AbcdiTRafey

Executive Direchor ] \ Researeh Scholar

Noter This cortificete iswalid 8l 509 Jpme 2004

B 492322 7671867 | B www alhamdshariahadvisory com
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AUDITORS® REPORT TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Dpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SINA Health, Education & Welfare Trust
(“the Trust™) which comprise the statement of financlal position as at June 30, 2023 and the statement
of income and expenditure, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes In accumulated
funds for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanyimg financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of SINA Health, Education & Welfare Trust as at June 30, 2023, and of its financial
performance, statement of cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with approved accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ([5As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Awditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent of
the Trust in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics far
Professional Accountants as adopled by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code},
and we have Tulfilled our ethical responsibilities in sccordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opingon,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fafr presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the approved accouniing and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such
internal control as the management determing necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whethar due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Dur chjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arlse from fravd or errer and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions
of users Laken on the basis of these financial statements.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
JHE Covabim i Ca, o Patnban regeived pasringedp Giom, ivs memdses ol BBG niverational Linsied, s UK covimpairy biniled by fusbiileg,
e 1o faail el Bhed inbernakvarat BO0 e wvmin gl ki pyngiyend moguide v Tism,




IBDO

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545 as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether d:ﬂ;f
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and Wt;“ﬂf n:.
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The ;' n
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
afl internal contral,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to duinnlaudit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Trust"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basts af accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related fo
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, §f such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of ocur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust
to cease to continue as a going conder.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant awdit findings, including any significant deficlencies in
internal control that we identily during our audit.

KARACHI @?’U Usiaen

BDOD EBRAHIM & Co.
paTED: 2 6 APR 2024 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Engagement Partner: Tarig Feroz Khan
UDIN: ARZOZ3101665UvJqlglm

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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SINA HEALTIL EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL MOSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible
Capital work in progress

CURRENT ASSETS
Medical supplies
Loan, advarces and other receivable
Short term deposits and prepayments
Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABRILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred prant

CURRENT LIARBILITIES
Trade and other payables
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
NET ASSETS REPRESENTED BY:
Restricted Funds
Zakat funds
Mon-zakat funds
Endowment fund

16

317,685,285
9,480,336
8,477,459

335,593,080

304,330,336
10,256,644
21,723,101

336,310,081

78,695,056
45,578,098
8,646,480
120,000,000
582,718,405

18,265,667
737,686
6,221,825
320,424,533
182,772,694

785,638,039

1,121,231,119

477,039,917

27,182,345

528,422,405

364,732,486

447,368,637

40,254 094

504,222,262

617,008,857

487,662,731

377,069,755

129,075,844
212,021,498
275,911,515

68,233,283
153,456,456
155,380,016

617,008,857

377,069,755

ed notes from | to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.




SINA UEALTH, EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENINTURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

RESTRICTED FUNDS
INCOME
Deferred income realized
Clinical receipts
Orant Income

EXPENDITURE
Operating expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses

Gross deficit
Other income
Surplus for the year

Attributable to:
Zakat funds
Mon-zakat funds

545,279,404
42,352,635
45,586,106

398,539,545
20,609,260
42,984,071

633,218,145

462,132,876

(590,036,173)
(40,725,711)
(23,950,821)

(439,297,564)
(30,286,384)
(11,144,946)

(654,712,705}

(480,728,894)

(21,494 560)
21,604,795

(18,596,018)
18,678,603

110,235

88,188
22,047

£2 585

66,069
16,517

110,235

82,585

e




SINA HEALTIL EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplas for the year
Adiustment for non-cash items
Deprecintion for the year
Amortization for the year
Profit and dividend on investments
Remeasarement of fair value in muwiaal fond invesiment
Gain an disposal of [ixed assets
(iranl imcome realised agaime) siscls
Gram income realiscd againsg expenses
Dreficit before working capital changes

Increase in current azsels
Medical supplbes
Lown and advances
Shart term deposits and prepayments

Decreass in current linbilities
Trade and ather payables
Met cash ased in operating activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions 10 propemy and equipment
Additions to intangible assels
Capital work in progresa
Proceeds from dizposal af property and cquipment
Profil received on investmenis

Met cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
Capital granits received
rant Vital Pakistan Trest (WPT) project - net
Endowment fund recelwed
Takeal / non-zakat fund - net

Met cash flow from financing activitizs

Met inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents al beginmning of the year

1023
Rupees

110,235

37,998,603
1,323,318
(21,604,795

-

(39.321.521)

(6,204, 183)

(27,758,745)

1012
Ruapees

82,583

318434852
1,292,955
{1,170,343)
(4,143,287)
(2,317,462)
(39,727,807)
(3,256,264)

(10,804,771}

(44,840,412)

{ln.ﬂs.ns}l
{2,424,655)

(9,787,293)
{40,749)
(2,931,784

{57,694, 456)

(13,111,749)

(12,759,326)

13,339,297}

(98,564,950)

(39,103,394)

(25,022 460)
{547,010)
(13,035,450)

21,604,705

(22,045,507)

(34,441,294)
3,310,000
17,531,484

(17,000,125)

(35,645,317)

33,142,287

17,092,639
194,956,032
144,319,828

83,684,014
(a4,751,620)
53,199,586
92 697,523

JES. 510,786

184,829,504

273,945,711
A28, 772654

110,080,794
318,691,900

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 702,718,403 428,772,694




SiNA BEALTIL EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST
STATEMEXT OF CHANGES TN ACCUMULATED FUND
AS AT JUNE 30, 2003

Reatrieind Fusdy

23 2z
Lk _EE. _r-._._ n.ﬁ_ﬂ_ Tolxl Takat IWam-zalmd funds .n_:—._u....m___-ﬁ Total
Blmpess = —

129919716

o, G52 B5 6 %6 75T.045 155,380,004 377,068,755 I7.0105277 100,804,153 101,010,044

245, BT 550 24,958 BB 341536439 156,657,551 19515107 336,193,344

(123723500 (350906854 (SA5279.404) (34653007 (39,833.84%) (398539545

322,890,333 122950,333 139,339,350 15,504,372

Trarsfermed S mmeee pf
e Bnd EpEtEaT 88, 1EE 22 047 110,253
120551,459 - - 4,359,928 54,369 928
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SINA HEALTH, EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 310, 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sina Health, Education & Welfare Trust (the Trust) is a not for profit organisation, established
under the Trust Act, 1882 on August 2, 2007 and is primarily engaged in providing primary
health care facilities, medical treatments, laboratory investigations and financial assistance to
the less privileged communities suffering from different ailments. The Trust operates 37 health
facilities in Karachi. The principal office of the Trust is situated at Plot No.1, D-21, Sector 30,
Korangi industrial area , Karachi.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These fnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards for Small-Sized Entities (SMEs) and accounting standards
for not for profit organisations issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,

Funectional and presentation

These financial statements have been presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Trust.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property and equipment

These are stated at eost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except for
freehold land which is carried at historical cost.

Depreciation is charged to stalement of income and expenditure applying straight line method
50 as 1o charge depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life, at rates mentioned in note 5
1o these financial statements. Depreciable amount represents cost less estimated residual value.
Depreciation on additions is charged Irom the month in which the asset is put to use and on
disposal, upto the month of disposal.




Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are included in the income and
expenditure account.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to statement of income and expenditure in the
year in which they are incwrred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised and
depreciated in a manner that represents the consumplion pattern and useful lives,

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and represents
expenditure incurred on property and equipment during the construction of clinics and other
installation. Transfers are made to relevant class of property, plant and equipment category as
and when assets are available for use in the manner as intended by the management.

Tmpairment

The carrying value of assets are reviewed at each statement of financial statements date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised
in the income and expenditure account.

Intangible assets

Intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impoairment losses, if amy

Amaortisation is charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a systematic basis by
applying the straight line method.

Useful lives of intangibles are reviewed at each financial year end if expectations differ
significantly from previous estimates. Where the carrying amount of an intangible 15 greater

than its estimated recoverable amount, it 15 written down immediately to its recoverable
amount.

Amortisation is charged to the statement of income and expenditure by applying the straight
line method at the rates specified in relevant note.

Costs associated with maintenance of intangible assets are charged to income and expenditure
account in the year in which they are incurred.

Medical supplies

Medical supplies are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is
determined on first-in first-out basis.




The management reviews the carrying amounts of medical supplies on a regular basis and
provision is made for items if there is any change in physical form.

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at bank are carried al nominal amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the stalement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand,

deposits held with banks in current and saving accounts and other short term highly liquid
imvestments with maturities of three months or less.

Deferred grant

Grant funds related to assets are accounted for az deferred capital grants, when the funds are
received, An amount equal to the annual charge for depreciation on assets purchased is
released from this account and reflected as ‘Grant income realised against assets' in the income
and expenditure aceount. Further, when a non-capital expenditure related to the asset takes

place, the amount is released from this account and reflected as "Grant income realised against
expenses’ in the income and expenditure account,

Revenue recognition

Donation and grants

Donations are recognized as income as and when received. Donations received in kind are
recognized at the fair value prevailing at the lime of receipt of such donation.

Grants and donations received for revenue expenditure are taken to statement of income and
expenditure.

Deonations restricted in its use by the donors are utilised for the purpose specified and are
classified as donations under restricted fund account. Any income made from such restricted
donations is also credited directly in the restricted fund account.

Revenue from ancillary activities (e.g. clinic fee, laboratory, glucometer, ultrasound income) is
recognised on receipt basis.

Return on bank deposits

Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal amount
outstanding and at the applicable rate.




Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the income and expenditure account on accrual basis. Expenses
incurred out of donation are reflected in the income and expenditure account, with an equal
amount being recognised as "Value of services rendered®.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if

the company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the company
intends to sertle either on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Taxation

The Trust is registered with the income tax authorities as a non-profit organisation under
section 2{36){c) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 read with Rule 212 and 220 of the Income
Tax Rules, 2002. The Trust does not account for taxation, as non-profit organisations are

allowed a tax credit equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the tax payable including
minimum tax and final tax payable, under section 100C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Trade and other payables

Accrued and other liabilities are recognised at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for goods and services. The recoverable amount is equal 1o Fair value.

Frovisions

Provisions are recognized when the Association has legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events if it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a resull of
past events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.




Financial instroments
Financinl azsels

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assels were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the
financial assets of the Company as at statement of financial position date are camried at

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

(i) it is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows: and

(ii its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the prineipal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs under simplified approach and 12 months life time under
general approach.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducied from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof.




3,16.2 Offectting of Minancinl assets and financial linbililies

Financial asscts and financial linbilities are sctoff and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if the Company has legally enforceable right to setoff the
recognized amount and intends cither lo seltle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultancously.

Restricted funds
Takat fuand

The zakat funds of the Trust are required to be utilised only for the patients who are entitled to
receive zakal under the Islamic shariah. Donations specified as zakat by the donor are
recognised under the general zakat fund account upon receipt. Subsequently, general zalkat
fund account 15 adjusted at pre-determined rates for the value of services provided to the needy
/ deserving patients.

Mon- zakat funds

Mon-zakat funds are utilised for operations of the Trust and all the patients (other than patients
eligible for zakat) are treated through funds received as non-zakat funds. Funds contributed by
the donors for operations are recognised under the non-zakat fund upon receipt. Subsequently,
non-zakat fund account is adjusted at pre-determined rates for the value of services provided to
the needy / deserving patients.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It alse requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Trust sccounting policies. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historic experience and other factors,
including expeciations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has
made significant estimates and judgments that are disclosed in respective notes to the financial
statements.




PROPERTY AND EQUIFMENT

e

Clinical and  Oifice amd
Building midical electrical Compuier Vehicles Solar Panel

equipment  equipment

Furniiare

Tatal
and Nixtores o

Description

e

Ruptes

Year ended June 30, 2023

Mel carmving valoe basis
Opening net book valoe 51415418 1798001683 2321077 16,164,727 6,797,640 10,208,807 175823554 16044414 304,330.336
Additions duming the year - = 44,200 6303617 5,982,600 11,385,053 185,000 921,950 25,002, 450
Transfemed fom CWIP 4,080,000 16,753,061 330,000 617,320 1,318,563 - 750,000 1262148 =15 331,097
Drepreciztion (11,134,259} (2,331 3,330,455 49056720 (3914417 (4.800.253) (53815550 T (37.598.503)

Clozing oet book valne 6490418 [1E5 420493 Eﬂm 17,735,209 o 181137 18,779 443 _.w.m.._.__.l.E__ ._._..m.pw_wﬂ uua.mmmmwml
Gross carrying valee basiz

Coest 56450418 236863420 12652888 40,791 568 25,146.99) 43807 E5E 4771537 41,029,829 481 463,559
Accomulaied deprecistion - (51,442.925) (10369.604) (23006350 ([l16063854) (24,328 415) (10,854,256} (I7.132.832) (165.778.275)

Net book vatoe 55459418 (33430495 23 17,755,209 §.183,137 15779443 13817301 13846597 317.685 185

Year eoded Jone 30, X023
Nt carrying valoe basis
Opening net book value 4], 60 43333873 2774460 1LSRE 349 4,080 865 ALY 16532808 13253359 238028205
Additions duving the vear - F | 428,500  3,747.400 31239200 12980317 550,000 - 23,045,507
Transferred fram CWIP 10,709,458 46,563,053 3,080,500 5,283,025 4,204,153 56,000 4467200 9309525 83.684.004
Drisposals - . . - [30.572) (962,018} - - [(99232E)
Drepreciziiom - 100085.233) (3.063.385) (5.452.137T) (ol TG 0500 [4.552.046) [(4.057454) 6,518 530 38434832
Closing el book value ARAI9418  1TRR01.E693 4220077 16164, 737 &, 787 65 PLS0RE0T 17582554 14044404 - mﬂ.ﬂ,.ur_..u.m_l
Gross carrving valee basis
Ty J2AT9 418 ZE01IR3ER  12.05B.688 33800630 17943, 526 32202805 2363636 37545600 430,010,008
Accumulited deprecislion - A0 3086081 (V.BIT613) (BT P0550M) (11058082 0913998 (6054033} (21801277 1237 70.672)
H!vﬂr.ﬂrn uH..._FaEG_u.E._.ﬂE;.H_Equm_nﬁ_ﬂu __m_qﬂ.ﬂ_m ._..u_u_.a."_.___.__uﬂr..r:_.:f..:.__ .._“Ehwnhumi

Annual rate of depreciation - e 1% i 13% i % 2%

In addsiion 1o the baildings owned by the Trust, there are five buildings reconstructed / resovated on plots wiich were given free of cost by dosors for milisation as clinics
for specified periods. The titles of these phots were nod translemed ko the Tnet as of June 30, 2023,




023 022

Rupees Rupees
INTANGIBLE

Opening balance 10,256,644 11,549,599
Additions 547,010

Amortization dunng the year {1,323,318) (1,292,955)

6.1 9,480,336 10,256,644

The electronic medical record system is amortized over the period of 10 years on straight line
basis.

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

Capital work in progress 71 8,427,459 21,723,101

Movement of carrying amount

Opening balance 21,723,101 70,965,821

Additions during the year 13,035,450 34,441,294

34,758,551 105,407,115

Transferred to property and equipment during the year (26,331,092) 83,684,014
8.4 459

Closing balance

MEDICAL SUPPLIES

Medical Supplies 13,295-,&55 18,265,667
LOAN, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Loan to staff ; 581,094 435,593

Advance against expenses 623,569 302,093
Advance tax 44,373,435

45,578,058 137,686

Loan to staff represent one third interest frée loan to the employees for the period of three
months as per trust's policy.
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 6,057,165 4,349,418
Prepaid rent 2,589,315 1,872,407
8,646480 6,221,825

e




11 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Amortizsed cost
Term deposit receipt

Fair value through profit or loss
Mutual fund units

11.1
profit is 19.5% (2022: 14.25%)

11.2 Mutual fund units

2023 2022
MNumber of units

- 1,289,546

- 4,744 872
- 125314

NAFA Islamic
Income Fund

NAFA Riba-free
Saving Fund

NAFA Al-Ameen
Islamic Asset
Allocation Fund -
Class 'C”

12 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand

Cash at banks in:
Current accounts

Savings accounts

2023 2022
MNote Rupees Rupees
1.1 120,000,000 246,000,000
112 - 74,424,533
120000000, 320,424,533

These represent term deposits with commercial bank having maturity of 3 months and rate of

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
- 12,993 981
- 48,714,176
- 12,716,376

= 74,424,533

120,317 135,231
275,452,263 62,190,848
121 | 307,145,825 || 120,446,615
582,508,088 182,637,463
582,718,405 182,772,694

12.1  The rates of profit on saving account ranging from 14.25% to 19.5% (2022: 12.25% to 14.25%)

per annum.

122




13

DEFERRED GRANT

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Grant received during the year
Transferved from Non-zakat Tund

Less:
Grant income realised against expenses
Grant income realised against assets

Grants received during the year for VPT Project
Grant income realised against Asset VPT Project

Grant income realised against Expense VPT Project

Balance as at the end of the vear

2023
Rupees

447,368,637
33,142,287
25 022,460

2022
Rupees

436,229,514
83,684,014
22,045,507

505,533,384

541,959,035

(6,264,185)
(39,321,921)

(3,256,264)
(39,727,807

(45,586,106)

(42,984,071)

341,134,828
(1,091,856)

(322,95),333)

188,283,020
(84,846,534)
(155,043,722)

17,092,639

(51,606,327)

477.039.917

447,368,637

These represent expenses that were made out of the deferred capital grants but does not meet
the capitalisation criteria of the Trust and were charged o income and expenditure account.

This represents amount realised to grant income equivalent to depreciation and amortization

charged on the relevant assets.

MNutrition & Immunization projects funded by Vital Pakistan Trust (VPT) for pregnant &
Lactating women and strengthen of immunization rate for children under the age of 5 years.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors

Accrued expenses
EORI payable

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

17,708,306
3,327,176
6,146,863

13,305,024
21,336,116
5,652,954

27,182,345

40,294,094

There were no contingencies and commitments as at the reporting date. (2022: Nil)

RESTRICTED FUNDS

Zakat funds
Fakat fund for clinics
Zakat ration fund for Baldia

16.1

112,295,984
16,779,860

50,362,956
8,870,327

129,075,844

68,233,283
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20k 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
?:lun-mkm. funds 212,021,498 153,456,456
Endowment fund 162 275911,515 155,380,016
617,008,857 _EM

Zakat funlds m_r:quimd to be ulilized only for patients who are entitled to receive zakat under
the Islamic shariah, whereas, all others patients are treated through funds received as non-zakat

funds.

Movement in the endowment fund is as follows:

Balance ag at July 1

155,380,016 101,010,088
Funds received from donor 92,561,500 49,056,298
Realised gain on remeasurement of funds 4,108,434 3,009,947
Realised gain on remeasurement of funds - 239,142 599,625
MNAFA & Almeen
Dividend for the year - 533,716
Profit on Term Deposit Receipts (DIB) 23,622,423 1,170,342
Balance as at June 30 16.3  275911,515 155,380,016

The amount has been received from a donor with stipulation that the principal amount to be
kept intact while the income earned by investment of the same can be utilised by the Trust

unless permitted by the Investment Committes.

DEFERRED INCOME REALIZED

Zakat funds
General zakat 192,372,550 215,005,613
MNon-zakat funds
MNon-zakat funds 28,864,665 27,890,210
Funds utilized - VPT Nutrition 213,789,285 125,877,344
il - VPT Inumunization 110,252,904 29,166,378
T 352,906,854 182,933,932
545,279,404 398,539,545
CLINICAL RECEIPTS
Clinic fees 41,624,921 20,603,910
i 727,714 5.350
RN 42,352,635 20,609,260
—_———— o =



GRANT INCOME

Grant income realised against expenses
Grant income realised against assels

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Medicines supplies
Vehicle and transportation
F.ent, rates and taxes
Utilities

Repair and maintenance
Communications
Advertisement

Printing and stationery
Depreciation
Amortization

Training cost

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and other benefits
Vehicle and transportation

Rent, rates and taxes

Utilities

Repair and maintenance
Communications

Printing and stationery

Donation Expense

Depreciation

OTHER EXPENSES

Auditors’ remuneralion

Legal and professional charges
Insurance expense

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

2023
Hupees
L]

6,264,185
39,321,921

3,256,264
39,727,807

45,586,106

42,984.07]
=

265,616,796
161,646,692
40,032,543
6,860,441
14,758,783
17,655,537
8,590,014
1,765,196
9,719,050
14,220,963
1,323,318
7,798,840

195,807,078
113,917,379
23,795,850
4,207,245
8,095,887
41,624,715
7,467,919
1,786,785
5,164,781
14,645,759
1,292,955
1,399,702

590,036,173

22,615,103
1,386,330
3,917,335
3,309,062
2,553,821
2,044,520

619,900
510,000
3,768,640

439,207 564
—_—

15,399 504
889,618
3,576,356
1,773,564
2,616,984
1,844,085
397,179

3,789,094

40,725,711

30,286,334

324,600
7,366,574
10,318,067
19,024
5,922,556

280,000
3,600,822
6,596,486

17,974

649,664

23,950,821

11,144,946
_————_—
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OTUHER INCOME

Profit on savings accounts
Gain on short term investment
Others

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2023 2022
Rupees Rupeccs

18,775,427 16,361,141
A 2,317,462
2.B29.368

21,604,795 18,678,603

Related parties includes associated parties / undertakings, other related undertakings / persons
and key management personnel, The Trust in normal course of business carries out transactions

with various related parties.

Enatities under common T rustecs

Mon-zakat funds received from Child Life Foundation

17,137,914 55,141,764

Mon-zakat funds received from Bharucha & Company 3,672,000 3,905,000
MNon-zakat funds received from Anam Fabrics (Pvt) Lid. 9,950,000 6,300,000
Key management personnel
Non-zakat funds received 565,000 650,000
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RELATED DISCLOSURES
Falrvalue iSrough Amoriived cond Taial
mralit ar logs
2023 031 2023 1821 2013 1011
Finamcial assicls
Loan ard advences - - 581,094 737,685 a1 s TNT.ERS
Shen 1amm deposis and prepaymeEnin . - G087, V65 RN HEY 5,057,165 b3R8
Shert lerm mvciliFeEns - 74,434,513 130,000,000 TG, 000,000 1300 D0 ) 120,424,533
Caih and bank belinces - - SLTIBADS  IELTTREM SELTIRADS  |ERLTTRLAW
AL TOOSEAM AMSTIAR0E MORAAGE  SI0 136738
Finsncial lisliligies
Trade and oiber payabiss - - 27,183 M5 &0, 204 D04 27, 1EX 348 A
- - T LB 3 A0 294 05l T LEX 345 A0, T
2023 2022
Number of employces
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employecs as al June 30 599 534
Average number of employees 644 571



COHRRESTPOMNDING FIGURES

Comesponding Ngures have been re-armanged and / or re-classified, for the purpose of better
presentation, the effect of which is not material.

DATE FOR AUTHORIZATION FOR IS5UE

The Board of Directors of the Company authorized these financial statements for issue on
7 6 APR 2024

GENERAL

=5 have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee unless otherwise stated. ﬁﬁ

y AL







VWays to
Donate

Bank Tranfer

Zakat Donations

LV[eR (118 SINA HEALTH,EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST |
BANK NAME: /0=l igpinizia Bt Bzr-1,14

IBAN:

I¥d 'el 6-99-64-29313-714-258425

General Donations

F-Y/eR i) SINA HEALTH,EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST

BANK NAME:
1:-Y1H PK62AIINOO0O1206166110016

¥ «4 '« X 0120166110016
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Write a Cheque to SINA

SR B SINA HEALTH,EDUCATION & WELFARE TRUST _
VI V133 pLOT #1,D-21, SEC 30 KORANGI, KARACHI

Door Step Collection

Call us for safe & secure donation collection, right
from your doorstep

MOBILE : 0300-0770820
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"Improving healthcare access for
underserved communities is not just a
moral imperative; it's a strategic
investment in the health and well-being
of our society." - Dr. Abdul Kalam

inMON

SINA Health, Education & Welfare Trust

ADDRESS: PLOT #1, D, 21, SECTOR
30 KORANGI INDUSTRIAL AREA,
KARACHI

+92 21 37131680
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